
 1

 

 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
October 24, 2012 

3:00 P.M. – DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 

1. Public Comments 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes of the October 10, 2012 Board Meeting. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
5. Bills 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports 
 

a. Executive Committee Minutes 
b. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
c. Personnel Committee Minutes 

 
7. Recommend approval of Change Order No. 3 for the SDWR Grant 

Improvement Project-Pipe Bridge & Instrumentation Specification 11-344 
in the amount of $41,891.00. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 



 2

8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Dell Computers in the 
amount of $30,345.41 for the purchase of four servers. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
9. Recommend selection of candidate for LAFCo Runoff Election. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion selecting candidate 
 
10. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this 
meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  
113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 
October 10, 2012 

 
 A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held October 10, 2012 at 
Casitas' Office, Oak View, California.  Directors Baggerly, Word, Hicks, Bergen 
and Kaiser were present.  Also present were Steve Wickstrum, General 
Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, John Mathews.  
There was one staff member and one member of the public in attendance.  
President Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 
 

1. Public Comments 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board that there would be a shutdown on the 
Matilija Conduit on October 16th from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. to replace some 
valves and install a fire hydrant.  Mr. Wickstrum then explained that the voided 
checks on the bill list were voided due to an error on the part of the printing 
company. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 

Director Word asked if Casitas would be participating in the annual water 
symposium think tank.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that Ron and I participated last 
year and were invited this morning.   
 
4. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 

a. Minutes of the September 26, 2012 Board Meeting. 
b. Recommend approval of an invoice to Alliant Insurance Services in 

the amount of $56,167.31 for the Special Liability Insurance 
Program. 

 
 Director Bergen suggested spelling out chemical toilets in the General 
Manager’s comments and removing a capital letter.   
 
 The Consent Agenda was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by Director 
Bergen as amended and passed with Director Word abstaining on item a as he 
was not in attendance at that meeting. 
 
5. Bills         APPROVED 
 
 Director Word questioned #13607 and asked if this was a monthly charge.  
Mr. Wickstrum explained that this was one of three payments. 
 



 2

 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Kaiser and 
passed, the bills were approved. 
 
6. Committee/Manager Reports   APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes 

 
On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 

the Committee/Manager Reports were approved for filing. 
 
7. Recommend the approval of purchase of live rainbow trout from Chaulk 

Mound Trout Ranch in the amount of $35,198.25.  APPROVED 
 
 Ms. Belser pointed out the amount listed on the agenda is incorrect.  The 
correct amount is $34,198.25. 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Word and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
8. Recommend awarding the 2013 Night Fishing Tournaments to Western 

Outdoor News Bass.      APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Kaiser and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved. 
 
9. Recommend approval of Change Order No. 1 for the Robles-Casitas 

Canal Replacement in the amount of $16,200.   APPROVED 
 

  On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved.   
 
10. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Consolidated Electrical 

Distributors in the not to exceed amount of $153,881.16 for the purchase 
of electrical motor control centers and equipment for the Ojai Valley Pump 
Plant electrical upgrade project.     APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Kaiser and passed, 
the above recommendation was approved. 
 
11. Recommend approval of a purchase order for Industrial Coating and 

Restoration Services in the not to exceed amount of $20,000 for the 
recoating of Casitas Dam intake track from elevation 552.60 to 540.20. 

          APPROVED 
 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen and 
passed, the above recommendation was approved. 
 



 3

12. Information Items:     APPROVED FOR FILING 
 

a. Monthly Cost Analysis for operation of Robles, fisheries and fish 
passage. 

b. Monthly Cost Analysis for Ojai FLOW. 
c. Investment Report. 

 
Director Hicks questioned the investment strategy that was listed on the 

investment report.  Mr. Wickstrum explained that the Finance committee will 
review it.  Director Word suggested looking for ways to reduce costs when the 
Fisheries Manager is here.  Mr. Wickstrum said he could take a look at it. 
  
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks and passed, 
the Information items were approved for filing. 
 
13. Adjournment  
 
 President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 3:21 p.m. 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Bill Hicks, Secretary 
 
 































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 9, 2012 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of October 9, 2012  
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 

1. Roll Call.      Directors Baggerly and Word 
  General Manager Steve Wickstrum  
  Staff – Ron Merckling 

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.   

The General Manager provided news that a runoff election is requested by 
LAFCO for two candidates.  This item will be moved to the Board. 
 
The General Manager reported that the Farm Bureau and the Association of 
Water Agencies of Ventura County are planning to have their bus tour of Ventura 
County water projects on November 7, 2012.  The tour will stop at Casitas Dam 
at approximately 2:45PM.  It was suggested that the tour go to the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area.  The response to the suggestion is that the dam tour is 
preferred and that this may be an alternate if it is raining on that day. 
 
The General Manager commented that staff will pursue further discussions with 
the Bureau of Reclamation on the management of the Teague Memorial 
Watershed.  The Directors commented on the positive impact that funding 
assistance from Reclamation will have at the Lake Casitas Recreation Area. 
 
The General Manager informed the Committee of the dates for Ojai Day and the 
Native Plants seminar, October 20 and 27, respectively. 
 

4. Update on Senior Canyon Project.  
The General Manager and Ron Merckling informed that Committee that the 
project has had a few change orders due to construction of the bridge bases and 
conflict with a neighbor’s asphalt project.  The contractor is waiting for the 
metalwork to be completed for the pipe span supports.  The pipeline replacement 
is scheduled for completion by December 14th.   The additional control and 
monitoring features are being specified and readied for bid.  The last date for 
application for reimbursement from the State is March 1, 2013. 



 
5. Update on State Water. 

The General Manager reported that Casitas and Ventura Water will be 
investigating opportunities to temporarily transfer their respective State Water 
entitlements and temporarily lessen the financial burden to local property owners. 
 The General Manager will also inform United Water Conservation District and 
the County of the proposed activity.  United WCD has been approached to 
consider the transfer to United WCD, but there are many difficulties in moving the 
water into their service area. 

 
6. Update on the City Ventura Agreement. 

The City is in review of Casitas’ draft agreement and may provide a response 
within the week.  If there is not a timely response from the City, the action will be 
moved to Committee for further renegotiation of the agreement. 

 
7. Additional Recoating of the Casitas Dam Intake Structure. 

The Committee reviewed the request by Bob Monnier to provide funding for 
additional coating work on the Casitas Dam intake structure.  The additional 
structure has been exposed since the last coating work that was done in the 
spring of 2012.  The structural elements do not have a lead based paint coating. 
The committee recognized that the structure elements need coating before being 
submerged again by the winter rising water in Lake Casitas. 

 
8. Update on Villanova Main Hit and Contractor’s response. 

The District received a letter from the contractor and the District responded to the 
letter, providing an additional 15 days to reimburse the District for the expenses 
incurred by the contractor’s damage to the Villanova Main.  Counsel has 
reviewed the letters. 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
                                                Inter-Office Memorandum 
 
DATE:  October 16, 2012 
 
TO:         Board of Directors 
 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Water Resources Committee Meeting of October 15, 2012 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.   Director Baggerly and Director Hicks.   

 General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
 Staff – Ron Merckling and Susan McMahon 

 
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board Comments.  None 

 
4. Manager Comments.   

Ron Merckling informed the Committee of staff participation at Ojai Day, October 20th, 
and a native plant workshop on October 27th. 

 
5. Bureau of Reclamation Final Closeout Review – Reclamation Reform Act. 

The General Manager reported that the Bureau will be conducting a final closeout 
review on October 22nd, which could lead to the granting of an exemption from the 
reporting requirements of the Reclamation Reform Act (RRA).  The RRA requires each 
agricultural landholder to report landholdings on an annual basis.  Once the final 
payment is made on the repayment contract, an exemption can be considered by the 
Bureau, as long as there are no other unresolved RRA issues between the District and 
the Bureau.  The process is likely to take longer than the next reporting cycle, 
therefore the District is proceeding with the 2012 reporting by the agricultural 
landholders.  The Committee will be updated as progress is known. 

 
6. Discussion on TMDL for Pumping and diversion Impairments. 

The Committee discussed the direction to decline the offer to develop a memorandum 
of agreement for the impairment TMDL.  A letter from the water agencies and major 
well pumpers has been sent to the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
representative, Shirley Birosik.  More action will be forthcoming as EPA develops the 
TMDL. 

 
7. Update on Regional Water Status.  

The General Manager informed the Committee that three of the major groundwater 
purveyors are experiencing low storage conditions and relying more heavily on Casitas 
water supply.  The water demand condition is typical of a low rainfall year, such as 



year 2007.  It was noted that the City of Ventura seemed to be evenly pacing their 
Casitas water purchase during the past few summer months, as compared to last 
2011’s high demand during the summer months.  It was further noted that Meiners 
Oaks Water District experienced a 27% reduction of water demand after notifying its 
customers of a water shortage.  This was an excellent response from the customers of 
MOWD. 
 

8. Update on Lake Water Quality Study. 
Susan McMahon, laboratory Supervisor, discussed the draft report prepared by Flow 
Science, Inc., concerning the evaluation of the Lake Casitas aeration system.  The 
report has focused on the evolution of the aeration system and directed toward the 
improvement of water quality in Lake Casitas.   The key issue identified was the 
enlargement of the anoxic zone, comprising a larger volume of low dissolved oxygen 
that causes a release of phosphorus from lake sediment, resulting in nutrients that 
promote lake algae.  The recent lake algae blooms have caused temporary reductions 
in filtration rates.  The study discusses several options for reducing the anoxic zone 
which will be considered for implementation by the district. 
 
Upon receipt of a final report, Susan will be presenting the report to the Board of 
Directors.   

 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Inter-Office Memorandum 

 
 
DATE:  October 19, 2012 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Assistant to GM, Rebekah Vieira 
 
RE:  Personnel Committee meeting on October 8, 2012 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING: 
 
1. Roll Call. Directors Bergen and Kaiser 

General Manager Steve Wickstrum 
Staff – Rebekah Vieira, Mark Passamani, Todd Evans, Suzi Taylor, 
John Parlee 
SEIU – Danny Carrillo 
 

2. Public Comments.  None. 
 

3. Board/Manager Comments.  None 
 

4. Summary of CMWD Safety Program. 
Safety Officer Mark Passamani provided his summary of the safety program and 
explained that there is now more participation in the safety programs.  The 
district has been using an online safety training program combined with tailgate 
sessions and training that is pertinent to a particular area of the organization.  
There is still room for improvement.  Staff has been working with contractors 
ensuring they are following their safety guidelines.  Safety policies are being 
reviewed and there is good management and supervisor support for safety. 
 

5. Special Liability Insurance Program Invoice. 
The Assistant to the General Manager reported that the liability insurance policy 
renewal invoice is $56,167.31 and while it increased slightly from last year it is 
still less than the cost in 2007.  This item is moved to the Board for approval. 
 

6. Summary of Pension Reform Provisions. 
The Assistant to the General Manager provided information regarding Pension 
Reform.  Effective January 1, 2013 new members to PERS will be required to 
pay at least a 50% share of normal costs.  The state has set a standard of 50% 
cost sharing for all current members but this does not take effect immediately 



and is subject to collective bargaining.  Compensation that counts towards 
pension benefits will be capped at $132,120 for new members.  After January 1, 
2013 the ability to purchase additional years of service, also known as airtime 
has been eliminated.  There are new limits on post-retirement public employment 
including a 180 day sit-out period before a retiree could return to work for a 
maximum of 120 days. 
 

7. Open Enrollment for ACWA JPIA Plans. 
If employees need to make any changes to their insurance plans they may do so 
in open enrollment.  All forms will need to be returned no later than November 
30, 2012.  The Anthem Blue Cross PPO plan increased by 8.45%, the Anthem 
CaliforniaCare HMO increased 3.7% and Kaiser increased 1.2%.  The Delta 
Dental plan experienced a 2.01% increase.  Vision and EAP did not have any 
increases.   
 
There are some changes that were implemented including coverage for women’s 
preventative services which are covered at 100% as a result of the Affordable 
Care Act.  Vasectomy services will also be covered at 100%.  Autism/PPD 
Coverage has been expanded and the Pre-Existing condition exclusion for adults 
was eliminated which will be mandated in 2014 by the ACA.   
 
Information on Open Enrollment will be e-mailed to employees. 
 

8. AFLAC’s change to Wage Works for section 125 plan. 
The Assistant to the General Manager explained that AFLAC has purchased a 
company called Wage Works who will be handling the Section 125 plans in the 
future.  These plans include reimbursement for dependent day care and 
reimbursement for unreimbursed medical expenses. 

 
 
 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: APPROVE CHANGE ORDER NO.3 FOR THE SDWR GRANT IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECT-PIPE BRIDGE & INSTRUMENTATION, SPECIFICATION 11-344 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $41,891. 

DATE:  OCTOBER 10, 2012 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors approve Change Order No. 3 for the SDWR Grant 
Improvement Project-Pipe Bridge & Instrumentation, Specification 11-344 in the amount of $41,891.00. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
In 2007, Casitas and Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company entered into an agreement to pursue a 
grant through the Watersheds Coalition of Ventura County for Proposition 50 grant funds to replace an 
aging pipe bridge and improve Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company’s instrumentation.   
 
The Board awarded a contract to Toro Enterprises in the amount of $515,200 to construct the pipe 
bridge portion of the project at the February 22, 2012 meeting. The contractor has experienced some 
unforeseen conditions during construction.  This has resulted in two previously approved change orders 
to construct a temporary pipeline and a retaining structure.   
 
The contractor has encountered additional unforeseen conditions.  These include additional excavation, 
rebar and concrete for two of the concrete bridge anchors and delays caused by issues beyond the 
contractor’s scope of work.  This includes having to demobilize to allow the homeowner to pave the 
road, nesting birds and delays in submittal review. 
 
Construction management and inspection for this project are provided under separate contract by 
Water Resources Engineering Associates (WREA).  WREA has reviewed the requests for change 
orders with Casitas staff and both believe the change orders are justified.  The change order 
breakdown is 
 
Change 
Order No. 

Change 
Order 
Amount 

Change Order Description 

1 $9037.00 Construct temporary highline pipe 
2 $6790.00 Construct earth retaining structure 
3 $41,891.00 Additional excavation, rebar and concrete due to differing site conditions 

and delays not caused by the contractor 
Total $57,718.00  

 
If Change Order No. 3 is approved, the total contract amount will be $572,918.  There is sufficient grant 
funding to pay for the change orders.  However, this will reduce the available funds to complete much 
needed instrumentation improvements to Senior Canyon Mutual Water Company’s system. 



 
 CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 

DATE: October 17, 2012 

    PROJECT:  SDWR Grant Improvements-Pipe Bridge  Specification No. 11-344 

    CONTRACTOR:  Toro Enterprises 

    ADDRESS:  P.O. Box 6285, Oxnard, CA 93031   

 

ITEM DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNIT 
PRICE 

TOTAL 

1 
 
 
 
2 

Extra work, labor, materials and miscellaneous items required to 
complete two bridge anchors because of differing site conditions. 

Extra work, labor, materials and miscellaneous items related to 
delays and re-mobilization for conditions not caused by the 
contractor.                                                                                         
                                                                    Total 

LS 

 

 

LS 

$37,500.00 

 

 

$   4391.00 

$41,891.00 

 

TOTAL AMOUNT OF CHANGE ORDER NO. 3                          $41,891.00 
 
ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNTS           $515,200.00 
 
PREVIOUS APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS AMOUNT                                     $15,827.00     
NEW CONTRACT AMOUNT  $ 572,918.00 
 
EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME -0- DAYS 
 
 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
 APPROVED:___________________ 
 Russ Baggerly 
 President of the Board 
ACCEPTED: TORO ENTERPRISES 
 
By:_____________________________________   DATE: ______________________________ 
  
 
 
Name Printed_____________________________ 



CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Interdepartmental Memorandum 

 
 
Date:  October 11, 2012 
 
To:  Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
 
From: Kevin Nguyen, Information System/Network Administrator 
 
Subject: Incode / File Servers Replacement 
 
Recommendations:   I recommend that the Board of Directors approve the purchase 
order to Dell Computers in the amount of $30,345.41. 
 
Background:   Casitas’ current servers are running Accounting software and network file 
sharing. These severs are five years old while the industry standard is to replace them 
every three years. The current servers are no longer compatible with the new version of 
Tyler Technology (Accounting software vendor) system.  In order to upgrade to the 
newer version of accounting software, current servers and software need to be replaced. I 
have budgeted $30,000.00 to purchase four new servers for this project.  
  
 We currently have four servers that I recommend to replace as follows: 
 

1. Incode server runs Accounting software and online bill payments per Tyler 
Technology requirements. 

2. File sharing server runs Windows 2008 server software, network file sharing 
throughout District, and daily backup of Casitas’ important documents.  

3. Terminal server runs new remote connection software that allows remote 
locations (Recreation, Treatment Plant, etc…) to connect to the new Accounting 
software. 

4. Domain controller server runs Windows 2008 server software. 
 

 
 Incode File Share Terminal Domain Total 

Dell $10,176.39 $10,176.39 $4,598.41 $4,868.65 $30,345.41
CompuWave $10,698.19 $10,698.19 $4,584.94 $4,584.94 $30,566.25
Oasis $13,202.90 $13,202.90 $8,707.33 $9,367.71 $44,480.85
 

 Included taxes and shipping as applicable. 












	10-24-12 Agenda.pdf
	10-10-12 min
	Bill list
	Executive Minutes 10 09 2012
	Water Res Minutes 10 15 2012
	Pers Minutes 10 08 2012
	Sr Canyon change order 3 memo
	Sr Canyon Change Order No. 3
	2012 New Servers
	LAFCo

